
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS       2/13/2020 
Uniform Rental and Full Garment Services 
City of Gastonia, North Carolina 
 
 

Addendum #1 
 

The City of Gastonia has received the following questions in response to the Uniform Rental and Full 
Garment Services Request for Proposals posted 1/24/2020.  Several questions addressed submitted have 
been paraphrased for clarity and brevity.  
 
Q: The RFP states that Liquidated Damages of $40 per garment per day will be assessed for 
garments that take longer than two weeks to deliver.  Due to the potential Liquidated Damages 
exceeding the value of the garments, will the City consider revising the Liquidated Damages policy? 
 
A: The Liquidated Damages has been revised as follows. 

Section III.A.2 
 At the option of the City liaison, failure to deliver newly ordered or replacement 
garments within 2 weeks of date ordered may result in Liquidated Damages being assessed to 
Service Provider in the form of a credit to the affected department’s invoice of up to $40 per week 
per undelivered garment, until said product is successfully delivered. 
 Failure by the Service Provider to deliver newly ordered, mended, or replacement 
garments within two weeks of the date ordered will result in Liquidated Damages being assessed. 
Liquidated Damages equal to the cost of rent/lease prorated daily until said product is 
successfully delivered will be applied in the form of an invoice credit. Once an item is subject to 
Liquidated Damages, that item shall not be invoiced to the City until it is delivered and no longer 
subject to Liquidated Damages. The Service Provider may defer Liquidated Damages an 
additional two weeks by providing acceptable temporary inventory. 

 
Q: Section III.L Garment Replacement Charge requires that garment replacement costs charged to 
the City be amortized over two years. Will the City consider a yearly draw down subject to the 
garment’s date of in-service? 
A: The Garment Replacement Charge Section will be revised as follows: 
 Section III.L  

Garments that require replacement due to normal wear and tear are to be replaced at no 
charge by the Service Provider. All City employees participating in the Lease or Rental program 
are required to complete an Enrollment Agreement authorizing the City to deduct the 
Replacement Cost of any garments not returned in the event of employment termination, from the 
employee’s final paycheck. Replacement Cost for unreturned garments is as determined on the 
Pricing Schedule, subject to prorating based on a two (2) year life cycle (104 weeks).  For 
example, if a shirt is $10.40 at full replacement cost, $10.40/104 = $0.10 per week; if the shirt 
has been in service for 25 weeks, then the prorated replacement cost is $7.90. 

Garments that require replacement due to normal wear and tear are to be replaced at no 
charge by the Service Provider. The Pricing Schedule Replacement Cost for unreturned garments 
and garments rendered unfit for use under circumstances exceeding normal wear and tear is 
subject to proration on a monthly basis. The Replacement Cost subject to prorating based on a 
two (2) year life cycle (24 months).  For example, a shirt that is $12.00 at full replacement cost, 



will be prorated $12.00/24 months = $0.50 per month. A shirt that has been in service for 10 
months would be replaced at a prorated cost of $12.00 – ($.50/month)*(10 months) = $7.00. The 
age of the replaced garment will be based on the in-service date tied to the Section III. J Garment 
Identification system requirement. 

 
Q: The RFP requires the submittal of Safety Data Sheets and Product Descriptions. Will these 
required documents count toward the maximum number of pages (24)? 
A: No. Any product documents or sample reports explicitly required by the RFP will not be counted 
towards the page limit. All such documents should be listed under the Appendices in the Table of 
Contents. The Pricing Schedule will not count towards the page limit.  
 
Q: Will the City consider separating the Purchase/Replacement Cost columns in the Pricing 
Schedule. 
A: The Pricing Schedule has been revised with separate “Replacement Cost Unit Price” and “Purchase 
Cost Unit Price” columns.  
 
Q: Are the High Visibility garments required to be ANSI compliant? 
A: Yes. All High Visibility garments are to be ANSI Class III compliant. The Pricing Schedule item 
descriptions have been revised. 
 
Q: Will the City consider adding a column to the pricing schedule allowing Service Providers to 
include garment insurance prices as method to eliminate damage fees and start-up fees. 
A: The Replacement Cost Unit Price as identified on the Pricing Schedule will be applied to any garments 
damaged beyond normal wear and tear.  Start-up or any other fees shall be contained within the unit 
prices identified on the Pricing Schedule. 
 
Q: What is the minimum length of the term? 
A: The term is a minimum of three (3) years with option for two (2) additional one (1) year extensions. 
 
Q: Is there boilerplate contract language already in place for potential Service Providers to begin 
legal review? 
A: No. Contract terms will be negotiated with the selected Service Provider. 
 
*The following answers reflect the current number of employees across all divisions. 
 
Q: How many male employees will wear Fire Resistant Category 2 garments? 
A: 56 
 
Q: How many female employees will wear Fire Resistant Category 2 garments? 
A: 2 
 
Q: How many male employees will wear High Visibility ANSI Class III garments? 
A: 37 
 
Q: How many female employees will wear High Visibility ANSI Class III garments? 
A: 0 
 



Q: How many male employees will wear polo shirts? 
A: 24 
 
Q: How many female employees will wear polo shirts? 
A: 5 
 
Q: How many male employees will wear cotton/standard poly blend uniforms (“regular” uniform)? 
A: 94 
 
Q: How many female employees will wear cotton/standard poly blend uniforms (“regular” 
uniform)? 
A: 6 
 
Q: How many employees will wear lab coats? 
A: 17 
 
Q: How many employees will wear cotton vs. standard poly blend uniforms? 
A: Participating employees should have the option to choose between both cotton and standard poly blend 
garments (excluding lab coats, jackets, high visibility, and fire resistant garments). 
 
Q: Will there be a separate RFP for floor mats, restroom managed services and first-aid products? 
A: No. 
 
The RFP and Pricing Schedule have been revised per this Addendum and posted to the City’s Invitations 
to Bid webpage. Please email Kyle Butler at kyleb@tworiversutilities.com if you would like an Excel 
version of the revised Pricing Schedule. 
 

 

 

 

 

 


